M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 25, 2002
9:18 AM

TAPES

SFC-02 # 41, Side A
SFC 02 # 41, Side B

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Pete Kelly convened the neeting at approximately 9:18 AM
PRESENT

Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senat or Dave Donl ey, Co-Chair
Senat or Ward, Vice-Chair
Senator Loren Leman

Senat or Lyda G een

Senator Gary W/ ken

Senat or Donal d O son

Senat or Al an Aust er man

Al so Attendi ng: REPRESENTATI VE FRED DYSON; HEATHER BRAKES, St aff
to Senator Therriault; PAT DAVI DSQON, Di rector, Di vi sion of
Legi sl ati ve Budget and Audit

Attending via Tel econference: From Anchorage: JEFF JESSEE,
Executive Director, Mental Health Trust Authority, Departnent of
Revenue; DAN BOCKHORST, Staff, Al aska Local Boundary Comm ssion

SUMVARY | NFORMVATI ON

SB 342- LONG TERM CARE QOVBUDSMVAN

The Conmittee heard from the sponsor and the bill noved from
Commi ttee.

SB 270- BOARD OF DI SPENSI NG OPTI ClI ANS

The Committee heard from the sponsor and the D vision of
Legi sl ative Budget and Audit. The bill nmoved from Committee.

HB 16- HOVE RULE COMVUN Tl ES

SFC- 02 (1) 03/ 25/ 02



The Conmittee heard fromthe sponsor, the Al aska Muinici pal League
and the Alaska Local Boundary Conm ssion. The bill was held in
Committee.

[ Not e audi o equi prent nmal functioned. First portion of the neeting
is not recorded on master audiocassette. Alternate recording is
avai l abl e although it is of poorer quality.]

#SB342

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 342(HES)
"An Act relating to the long term care onbudsman.™

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.

Senator Geen, Chair of Senate Health, Education and Social
Services Conmttee, spoke to the bill. She rem nded the Conmttee
about the previous year when the Long Term Care Orbudsman authority
was transferred fromthe Departnent of Adm nistration to the Menta
Health Trust Authority (MHTA). She noted this change was nade to
prevent a potential conflict of interest. In the process of this
transfer, she stated that a provider of assisted |living and nursing
care inforned the MHTA that the Long Term Care Onbudsnman woul d not
be permtted on their premses due to certain |anguage in the
enabl i ng statute.

Senator Green stated this legislation corrects the | anguage error
and provi des access of the Long Term Care Onbudsman to facilities
that provide assisted living or nursing care services for the
purpose of investigating conplaints. She stressed this onbudsman
oversight is required by the federal governnent, which provides the
majority of the funding for the onbudsman activities.

JEFF JESSEE, Executive Director, Mental Health Trust Authority,
Depart ment of Revenue, testified via tel econference from Anchorage
that he is available to answer questions.

Senator Green offered a notion to report SB 342 from Commttee with
i ndi vi dual recomendati ons.

There was no objection and the CS SB 342 (HES), MOWED from
Conm ttee with acconpanying zero fiscal note #1 fromthe Departnent
of Admi ni strati on.

#SB270

SFC- 02 (2) 03/ 25/ 02



CS FOR SENATE BI LL NO. 270(L&C)

"An Act extending the termnation date of the Board of
Di spensing Opticians; relating to the regul ation of di spensing
opticians; and providing for an effective date."

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.

HEATHER BRAKES, Staff to Senator Therriault, testified this
| egi sl ation was drafted based on an audit conducted by the D vision
of Legislative Budget and Audit and released by the Legislative
Budget and Audit Comm ttee on January 24, 2002.

Ms. Brakes stated that the audit "had several concerns about the
Board". She said this included the disparity between the nunber of
peopl e who becone |icensed and the nunber of people registered to
be apprenti ces, noti ng t he 6, 000- hour requi renent for
apprenti ceship may unduly prohibit apprentices fromobtaining their
| icenses. The auditors, she pointed out, suggest the Board
reconsider the necessity of the 6,000-hour requirenent. She
informed that the Board of Dispensing Opticians agreed to a
reduction, but requested a provision requiring conpletion of an
$800 correspondence course. She reiterated this would be a hardship
to the enpl oyee and coul d possibly be shifted to the enpl oyer.

Ms. Brakes |listed another concern identified in the audit relating
to the Board's State exam nations. She referenced a previous sunset
review report issued by the D vision of Legislative Budget and
Audit in 1995, which recommended the Board "inprove the objectivity
and consistency of the State's exam" After again finding that the
Board's process was "flawed", she remarked, the auditors suggest in
the current report that the Board "give serious consideration” to
di scontinuation of the practical exam nation and instead utilize
the nationally recognized exans available. She pointed out the
nationally recogni zed exans are identified in SB 270.

Ms. Brakes cited | anguage fromthe audit report, "The Board has not
resolved the prior sunset audit reconmendations related to the
State practical exam nation. The objectivity and consi stency of the
State practical exam nation did not inprove over the current sunset
review period resulting in successful challenges by applicants who
originally were determined to have failed the test."

Ms. Brakes continued that although the Board has offered several

solutions, none would fully resolve the situation. She pointed out
the audit makes an assessnent that "elimnating the Board does have

SFC- 02 (3) 03/ 25/ 02



merit in the future". She enphasized the legislation before the
Conmttee does not elimnate the Board.

Co-Chair Kelly noted he reviewed the Legislative Budget and Audit
report and clarified this |egislation does not provide an extension
date as long as nornal because of the intent that the Board devel op
a nore objective exam nation.

Ms. Brakes replied the legislation provides for the renoval of the
exam nation authority fromthe Board.

Co-Chair Kelly clarified the intent is that the Board woul d be re-
audi ted sooner than would normally occur, and that the exam nation
authority could be reinstated if the Board takes appropriation
action.

Ms. Brakes concurred.

Co-Chair Kelly then noted the legislation also reduces the
apprenticeship from6,000 hours to 3,000 hours.

Ms. Brakes added that the legislation recognizes an associate's
degree as a substitute for apprenticeship hours.

Senator G een asked for further explanation of the Board's
reconmendation for a course of study.

Ms. Brakes replied that the Board agreed to the audit's
recommendation to reduce the nunber of apprenticeship hours
required, however, the Board requested substitution of a
correspondence course that woul d cost the apprentice $800.

Co-Chair Kelly qualified this is not included in the bill
Senat or Green asked the reason.

PAT DAVI DSON, Director, D vision of Legislative Budget and Audit,
testified the correspondence course requirenent was not included in
the legislation because an enployee of an Optonetrist,
Opht hal nol ogi st, or dispensing Optician, who assists in the
distribution of eyeglasses and contact I|enses, nust be an
Apprentice Di spensing Optician.

Ms. Davidson reiterated there is a "w de di screpancy” between the
nunber of apprentices and the nunber of dispensing opticians. She
listed one reason as the length of tinme required to conplete the
apprenti ceship, noting that many apprentices |eave the field before
conpletion. She |isted as another reason that sonme apprentices do

SFC- 02 (4) 03/ 25/ 02



not intend on becom ng a dispensing optician as a career choice.
Therefore, she stated that to require these enpl oyees to conplete
an $800 course is unreasonable, given the |ower salaries paid for
t hese positions.

Ms. Davidson detailed the two nmethods for becoming |icensed as a
di spensing optician: experience in the field, or an associate
degree. She noted passage of a state examnation is required for
bot h met hods.

Senator O son asked how this conpares to other states.

Ms. Davidson responded that 22 other states either register
di spensing opticians or have no m ni mumrequirenments. She renmarked
that the majority of states |license dispensing opticians.

Senator A son asked how the training requirenents in Al aska conpare
to the states that |icense the practice.

Ms. Davidson replied the current 6,000-hour requirenent in Al aska
is not the highest, as a few other states require nore tine.

Senator O son next wanted to know whether there is a difference
between opticians working under the  "gui dance” of an
opht hal nol ogi st and those opticians worki ng i ndependentl|y.

Ms. Davidson replied there is no difference for apprentices, as
they all mnust operate under the supervision of a dispensing
opti ci an.

Senator G een asked if the apprenticeship is designed to train
apprentices to beconme di spensing opticians or whether the intent is
to provide an educati on.

Ms. Davidson answered both are correct. She stated that nuch of
training for the job of dispensing optician involves “hands on”
experience; however, a certain anount of studies is necessary to
pass the national exam nation. She qualified that an apprentice
could chose to take the correspondence class to prepare for the
exam nation, although it is not necessary to require the course for
everyone working as an apprentice.

Senator Wl ken offered a notion to report SB 270 from Conm ttee
with individual recomendati ons and attached fi scal note.

There was no objection and CS SB 270 (L&) MOVED from Conmittee

wi th acconpanyi ng $20,600 fiscal note #1 from the Departnent of
Communi ty and Econom ¢ Devel opnent.

SFC- 02 (5) 03/ 25/ 02



#HB16

SENATE CS FOR CS FOR SS FOR HOUSE BI LL NO 16(JUD)

"An Act relating to cities incorporated under state | aw that
are honme rule communities; and providing for an effective
date."

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Committee.

REPRESENTATI VE FRED DYSQON, sponsor, requested the Conmttee to
"raise the threshold" for hone rule communities from 25 to 100
residents, which he stated Tam Cook of the D vision of Legal and
Research Services as deened appropri ate.

Representati ve Dyson rem nded that the A aska Constitution requires
the Legislature to provide for maxinmum self-determ nation for
conmuni ties.

Representative Dyson read Appendi x C. Hone Rule as a Native Self-
Governance Option produced by the Econom c Resource G oup, The
Institute for Social and Econom ¢ Research, University of Al aska,
Anchorage into the record as follows. [Copy on file includes source
ref erences. |

Al aska's constitution establishes a policy of nmaxim zing |ocal
sel f-governnent. This also is the goal of the Native peoples
of Al aska have for thenselves. As shown in this report, Native
comuni ties have pursued different paths toward this goal of
sel f-governnment, nany participating in the state system
others staying outside it. Home rule for rural Native
comunities is a largely unexplored self-governance option.
| mpl ementing honme rule in nost Native communities would
require some changes in hone rule requirenents, but in
general, anything that state can do to facilitate the
devel opnment of self-governing instructions will benefit not
only Alaska's Natives but the state's overall system of
governance and would conme closer to realizing the state's
constitutionally expressed sel f-governance objective.

The second-class city status of many Native villages in Al aska
does not carry with it any significant measure of |ocal
autonony and control. Under this status, city governance and
operations are carried out in accordance with state general
law, with no | eeway for adaptation to traditional values or
| ocal circunstances. The main benefits of this status have

SFC- 02 (6) 03/ 25/ 02



cone from higher state revenue sharing paynents and greater
access to other state assistance prograns than are possible
for unincorporated areas. However, the state constitution
provi des the nmeans to create |ocal governnents that could be
far nore adaptable and appropriate for rural Al aska than the
exi sting municipal system

Al aska's hone rule provision is the nost extensive in the
United States. It provides that "a home rul e borough or city
may exercise all |egislative powers not prohibited by |aw or
by charter." Exercising "legislative powers" essentially nmeans
that a honme rule jurisdiction can have any powers that the
Al aska state | egislature has, subject only to limtations of
the state constitution, state statutes, and the nunicipality's
own charter. The legislature has enunerated a nunber of
specific limts on home rule organization and powers, but
beyond these, the community itself can determ ne how to design
its own governnent.

Under current law, first class cities and comunities with a
per manent popul ati on of over 400 people can attain honme rule
by an affirmati ve vote of the people and their adoption of a
charter. However, there is no particular reason to retain
these classification and size constraints on this particul ar
form of self-governnent. The constitution allows hone rule to
be extended to other classes of cities. It would take only an
act of the legislature to allow other comunities in Al aska to
adopt hone rule charters.

Maki ng home rule available to rural comunities would be a
significant step toward nore effective | ocal governnent. This
is especially the case where Natives constitute a clear
majority of the popul ati on and can expect continued control of
the local governnment, and where tribal institutions and
village corporations work together. Instead of having to
foll ow everything that is spelled out in general law, as is
now required in second class cities, a honme rule conmunity
woul d be able to design its own governnent to neet its own
needs, circunstances, and objectives. Along with the ability
to create a nore appropriate nunicipal governance structure,
home rule could provide tools for the effective exercise of
| aw enforcenent and ot her police powers, managenent of |and
and resources, protection of subsistence habitat and
environmental quality, and for carrying out other public
responsibilities.

To acconplish sonme of these objectives, honme rule city
boundari es woul d need to i nclude sufficient |and, water, and

SFC- 02 (7) 03/ 25/ 02



subsi stence resources to protect the community and its ways of
making a living, and the state would need to renove existing
statutory obstacles to effective |ocal control and adaptation
to | ocal ways of self-governing. Finally, the state woul d need
to abide by the constitutional directive that "A |ibera
construction shall be given to the powers of |ocal governnent
units."

Representative Dyson expressed, "These are really the marching
orders that we've been working at nearly six years on this
project."”

Senator Ward asked the "floor" population | evel for a second-cl ass
city.

Representative Dyson replied the amount is currently 25, although
he recomrends i ncreasing the nunber to 100.

Representati ve Dyson pointed out that the Al aska Minici pal League,
t he Sout heast League and a nunber of communities have endorsed this
| egislation and plan to organize into |ocal governnments if it
passes into law. He assured there would not be a significant
difference in the amount of funds allocated to the comunities.
However, he stressed, the "far nore official and recogni zed" nanner
in which to receive those funds.

Senator Ward shared that with the exception of the identified |arge
groups of Bethel, Goldbelt, Sitka, etc., the Al aska National
Interest Lands Conservation Act (ANILCA) required village
corporations have at |east 24 shareholders. O herw se, he pointed
out, the village was classified as a "group”. He asked the nunber
of ANI LCA-certified groups.

Representative Dyson did not know the nunber

Co-Chair Kelly remarked that statutes governing a second-class city
exi st and are alnost identical to the proposed honme rule community
structure. He asked why this Ilegislation is necessary, as
interested comunities could opt to form second-class cities.

Representative Dyson replied this legislation allows the potenti al
cities to wite their own charter, to "tailor” it to the cultura
background of the community, and to determne the type of
government and scope of responsibilities desired.

Co-Chair Kelly stated second-class cities do not wite their own
charter.

SFC- 02 (8) 03/ 25/ 02



Representative Dyson furthered that a second-class city nust follow
the Al aska State General Law Provisions, which he characterized as
a nodel nmunicipal charter, and is often not appropriate for rura
communities or Native comrunities.

Co-Chair Kelly asked if second-class cities are audited every five
years and whether the honme rule communities established under this
| egi sl ati on would al so require audits.

Representative Dyson replied audits would not be required of hone
rule coommunities but could be perforned. Instead, he stated, these
governments would be required to submt an authorized version of
their records.

Senator W1 ken expressed several concerns with this |egislation
al t hough he appreci ated Representative Dyson’s intent.

Senator W/l ken asserted, "This bill flies in the face of our
constitution." He cited Article X, Section 1 of the Al aska
Constitution, "The purpose of this Article is to provide for
maxi rum | ocal self governnment," as discussed, but noted the
sentence continues, ".with a mninumof |ocal governnment units". He
opined the State should be organizing into nore efficient
governments rat her than nore inefficient governnents.

Senator WIken next read from Section IIl of Article X ".the
st andar ds shal | i ncl ude popul ati on, geogr aphy, econony,
transportation and other factors.

Senator W1 ken asked how hone rule communities would relate to the
organi zation of Alaska into |ocal governnents. To answer, he
poi nted out that only the | anguage, “or a honme rule community” is
added to existing | aw.

Senator Wl ken directed attention to a spreadsheet, "Standards for
Bor ough I ncorporation” and to charts he had distributed [copies on
file], one showing the relationship of |ocal governnments and
boroughs that serve several comunities, and the other show ng the
aut onony home rule communities woul d have under this |egislation.
He noted the sixteen criteria listed on the spreadsheets nust be
net before a borough could be incorporated. He opined that rather
than "working toward the good of a commobn unit"” as specified in the
State constitution, the honme rule community proposal would create
| ocal governnments wthin an area each with their own self-
i nterests.

Senator W1l ken nentioned there are 11 ways to organi ze a community
in Alaska, referencing the spreadsheet, "Structures of Local

SFC- 02 (9) 03/ 25/ 02



Government in Al aska" [copy on file]. He pointed out the proposed
home rule comunities would be identical to second-class cities
with the exception that the home rule comunities would be powered
by a charter

Senator W/ ken remarked that a charter is "organic |aw' and equates
to a constitution for a nmunicipality. He stressed these charters
are very powerful, but are difficult to wite and require
expertise. He spoke to a proposed city charter rejected the year
prior that woul d have overrul ed actions of the State Legi sl ature.

Senator WIlken noted this legislation would allow up to 200
different charters across the state and the Legi sl ature woul d have
no input into the powers granted by those charters. He suggested
the charters could be witten with no consideration for "their
nei ghbors down the street, down the river or across the nountain.”

Senator Wl ken stated this legislation allows rural communities to
continue, "shirking their responsibility for |ocal education." He
explained the bill provides that honme rule comunities are not
required to contribute to education costs. He conpared organized
communities in the state and the $269 nillion total amount of funds
they contributed to education, to unorgani zed comunities, which
contributed no funds. He ascertained that this bill allows the
continuation of "a major problemin this State today."

Senat or W1l ken commented that this legislation is contrary to the
goal s of the Al aska Minicipal League of maxi mum | ocal governance
with mniml governing units. He relayed that although he has been
told the organization supports the bill, he has yet to see witten
confirmation of such.

Representative Dyson responded by agreeing with Senator WIken
regarding the State constitutional "encouragenent™ of a m ni mum
nunmber of governments. Representative Dyson furthered that
requiring multiple villages that are separated by distance to
operate as one city, is unreasonable, although he predicted a
pattern whereby each community would organi ze as one government
Wi th several communities collaborating into a borough. He expected
that allowng comunities to organize under State |aw would
encourage the process of the aggregation "that we all want." He
al so antici pated several second-class cities would convert to hone
rule communities for the purpose of witing a charter that npst
accurately reflects their culture and needs.

Representative Dyson referenced comrunities organi zing under the

proposed hone rule nmethod, and disputed that this "does anything to
make them nore selfish.” He predicted the self-interests woul d not

SFC- 02 (10) 03/ 25/ 02



change remarkably, although the formation of self-governnment woul d
give residents a broader interest and a nmeans for communicating
Wi th other communities. He shared his experiences of working in
approxi mately 20 villages on power plants and wastewater treatnent
plants. He told of the multiple governing bodies in the unorgani zed
comunities and the | ower esteemgranted to the State governnent.

Representati ve Dyson renmarked there woul d be no "down side" to the
addition of hone rule comunities to the options of nunicipal
gover nnment .

Representative Dyson disagreed with Senator WIlken and with the
Local Boundary Comm ssion that witing charters would not be too
difficult for communities. He shared that two former nenbers of the
Local Boundary Comm ssion recently fornmed a private conpany to
consult with conmmunities on these matters. He also noted the
governnments of Native communities in Canada could be used as a
nodel . He disputed the claimthat witing a charter would place a
burden on comunities formng a honme rul e governnent, expressing it
is an "elitist attitude" that the State nust protect the |oca

residents in the event they "nmess it up"” or are "m schievous". He
stated that people could nake their own decisions, and m stakes,
and learn from them He expressed that to deny conmunities the

ability to organize because of these concerns, "is absolutely
agai nst every concept | know in the whole novenent of freedom and
denocracy and constitutional governnent in our world. | am not

afraid of freedom I'mnot afraid of giving everyone out there the
chance to nake their own decisions wite their own constitution and
to make m stakes." He conpared this situation to that of being a
parent and allow ng children to nmake their own deci sions.

Representative Dyson agreed with Senator W/ ken's assertion that
the issue of contributions to |ocal education costs is inportant
and nust be addressed.

Representative Dyson expressed his intent is to provide further
incentive for local conmunities to organi ze | ocal governnents.

Co-Chair Kelly spoke of a construction conpany no longer in
busi ness that was instructed by certain government representatives
that the conpany would be required to conduct business in a
speci fic manner.

SFC 02 # 41, Side B 10:05 AM

Co-Chair Kelly informed that this conpany was cautioned that

SFC- 02 (11) 03/ 25/ 02



permts for projects |located in sone organized conmunities "m ght
not be forthcomng" if the conmpany "didn't play ball". He noted the
conpany did not conformto the requirenents and subsequently did
not receive the necessary permts. He asserted this practice, which
he characterized as extortion, mght be continuing, although it
coul d not be proven.

Co-Chair Kelly questioned whether creating this new form of | ocal
governnment could potentially establish 200 organi zations wth the
ability to issue permts based on criteria greater than that of the
State. He asked if this would place small groups of people in a
position of significant power in determning how funds are spent in
private industry. He summarized his concern that this process could
create "an entirely new permtting reginme that could be used to
| everage dollars in the private sector or otherw se.”

Representative Dyson responded this is a danger, and that there is
al ways concern that when granting power, it could be m sused. He
predicted in the next five years that 12 conmunities woul d becone
organi zed under the proposed home rul e provisions, rather than 200.
However, he assured that because these communities would be
organi zed under State law, there would be nore opportunity to
address problens. He remnded, "lIllegal activity is still illegal".
He reiterated he is willing to the take the risk that sone
comunities would "do it wong" to allow nore communities to
or gani ze.

Senat or Ward commented that both Representative Dyson and Senator
W1 ken have described a problem Senator Ward suggested including a
provision in this bill that would allow a comunity to wite a
charter but would inpose certain restrictions relating to taxation
for education. He surmi sed that a significant nunber of residents
of unorgani zed communities would contribute to education funding
al though there is currently no method for themto do so.

Representati ve Dyson replied that "major discussion” on this nmatter
has occurred over the past three years. However, he expressed his
intent to create the hone rule community system i ndependently to
fundi ng and specifically, taxation. He spoke to |egislation passed
by the House of Representatives that includes taxation for
education fundi ng and ot her governnental services.

Representative Dyson anticipated several communities would utilize
their current Indian Reorganization Act (IRA) structure and convert
to home rule communities. He clarified that no "racial conponent”
woul d be all owed under State law relating to who could vote or hold
of fice.

SFC- 02 (12) 03/ 25/ 02



Senator WIken pointed out that other legislation, SB 48,
establ i shes a systemto anal yze whet her conmunities are "ready" for
sel f-government. He noted that audits are not required for second-
class cities currently. This underscored to himthat there is no
difference between the proposed hone rule comunity and second-
class city structures, with the exception of the charter. He
stressed the state would have no oversight for the charter of a
home rule comunity. This was "inportant™ and "troubl esone” to him

Senat or Green expressed the need to consider this matter carefully.
She asked if a recogni zed soverei gn conmmunity, or |RA nust have a
racially defined conmponent or characteristic.

Senat or O son answered no; there is no stipulation that a certain
percentage of the residents of such a comunity nust be of a
speci fic ethnic background.

Senat or Ward countered that the US Secretary of the Interior mnust
certify a coomunity for it to be recognized under IRA and that the
Secretary would not certify if the residents were not Native
Anmerican. Therefore, he stated there is a racial conponent.

Senator O son agreed, but clarified that a comunity of 100
residents could still qualify if 25 residents are white and 25 are
Nati ve.

Senator Ward acquiesced and specified that the "overriding
government” of an I RA nust be a Native organization.

Senator Green next asked if there are other nethods, beside IRA to
qualify as a recognized sovereign community by the federal
gover nnent .

Senat or O son responded no.

Senator Ward explained there are there is a real difference between
an | RA and a sovereign nation

Co-Chair Kelly asked for clarification of |IRA

Senat or Ward explained that the I RA was devel oped to address the
situation of Native Anericans in the Lower 48 and their ability to
sel f-govern. He stated that when the Native Cains Settlenent Act
was adopted in 1971, it was established there would be no
recogni zed sovereign Native nations in A aska with the exception of
sonme existing nations including Metlakatla, Tyonek and Arctic
Village. He noted that comunities attenpted to becone certified as
sovereign nations after this date due to funding opportunities and

SFC- 02 (13) 03/ 25/ 02



because of these efforts, it was decided that all 214 villages are
equi valent to an I RA. However, he qualified, not all villages are
certified as I RA

Co-Chair Kelly asked the nunber of IRA villages.

Senator O son explained that the | RA passed the US Congress in 1936
with the goal to grant additional self-determnation to Native
community nenbers. He stated that federal funding has since
provi ded further incentive for communities to organi ze under the
| RA.

Senator Ward responded to Co-Chair Kelly's question that there are
approxi mately 50 recogni zed | RA conmunities. He stressed there is
significant effort required to becone recogni zed.

Senator Austerman commented there is an IRA village l|ocated on
Kodiak Island, which is ineligible to receive State nmunici pal
mat chi ng grants.

KEVIN RITCH E, Al aska Minici pal League, testified that the League's
Local CGovernnent Subcommittee/Legislative Conmmttee reviewed the
| egi sl ation and provi ded conceptual support. However, he enphasized
the group did not consider the "significant change in the powers of
communities" and instead considered the options of allowng a
comunity to determ ne the type of governnent.

M. Ritchie appreciated the Conmmttee' s di scussion, asserting that
the future of nunicipal governnments in Alaska is inportant.

Senat or Green asked the League's definition of nmunicipality.

M. Ritchie replied the League follows the State’'s definition: a
| ocal governnent created under the rules and regul ations of the
State of Al aska. He understood that a hone rule community woul d be
defined as a city under this legislation, although it was not
specifically stated as such in the bill title.

Senator G een asked about popul ation perineters.

M. Ritchie responded that statute establishes population
perimeters for the different types of nunicipalities.

Senat or W1l ken asked the League's position on the bill
M. Ritchie reiterated the League has supported the bil

conceptual ly, but qualified the Conmttee has discussed different
i ssues, which could inpact the position. He inforned that when the

SFC- 02 (14) 03/ 25/ 02



subcommttee reviewed the legislation, it was under the inpression
that there would be no significant change to nunicipal powers.

Senat or Ward asked the relationship between the League and |RA
conmuni ties.

M. Rtchie replied there is no formal relationship at present.

Senator Ward asked if the League woul d oppose this legislation if a
provision were added to require a mandatory contribution for
educati on fundi ng.

M. Ritchie stated he woul d pose the question to the League.

Representative Dyson remarked he has nade no effort to encourage
those parties in support of this legislation to contact the
Commttee. He stated, "I have naively assuned, and it has been true
all through the conmttee process, that this thing is so self-
evidently val uabl e and we have such w despread support within the
| egi sl ative body for self-determi nation and renoving barriers and
making it attractive."

Representative Dyson opined this discussion has identified that the
"crux of the issue" relates to philosophical differences between
Senator W1 ken and hinself. He stated, "Senator W] ken sees that
giving the folks the right to, and the opportunity, to wite their
own constitution and not have State supervision, as |long as they do
it within our constitutional franmework and the | egal framework. He
sees that as an issue of grave concern. | see that as an issue of
great celebration: giving folks the freedomto do whatever the heck
they darn well do within constitutional boundaries, not having
State governnent, Big Brother, |ooking over their shoulder, is a
mar vel ous opportunity and a cause for great celebration.™

Co-Chair Kelly commented that if the Legislature were "working
under the assunptions of a Bill of Rights, where all people are
equal , maybe we woul dn't be afraid; but in this state, all people
are not equal. Adding the power of a governnent to those who
al ready are throw ng around incredi ble econom c weight m ght just
scare them | don't see this as a |iberty issue because the roles

are scranbled in Alaska anynore; you can't talk about I|iberty
anynore. |If you were to apply this in a situation of conplete
equality, like the Founding Fathers had assuned, |1'd buy into it.

VW don't have that. W don't have anywhere that in this State right
now. ”

Co-Chair Kelly announced he would hold the bill in Commttee and
that he had conveyed such to Representative Dyson before the

SFC- 02 (15) 03/ 25/ 02



heari ng was schedul ed.

DAN BOCKHORST, Staff, Al aska Local Boundary Comm ssion, testified
via tel econference from Anchorage, to informthat the Conm ssion
has the responsibility under State law to act on petitions for
i ncor porations of city and bor ough gover nnment s, city
reclassification, nunicipal annexation, nerger, consolidation,
detachnment and disillusion. He stated the Conmm ssion reviewed this
| egislation at a neeting held March 9, 2002, and authored a letter
to the Conmittee on the matter [copy on file.] He sunmarized the
contents of the letter, noting the Comm ssion recogni zes that HB 16
is "well intended" and that the Comm ssion formally comrended the
sponsor for "seeking ways to enhance | ocal governnment in Al aska."

M . Bockhorst pointed out, however, two "fundanental concerns”
detailed in the correspondence, the first questioning the need for
a new type of |ocal governnment as the Comm ssion concludes that
existing options are available for flexibility and adaptability for
sel f-governance. He detailed the options currently avail able for
| ocal governments and noted the simlarities of the second-cl ass
city structure to the proposed honme rule comunity structure.

M. Bockhorst |listed the second concern as relating to the
requi renent that the conmunity develop a legally sound charter. He
informed that <currently only boroughs and first-class city
governments could develop charters, which also have statutory
restrictions. He spoke to difficulties encounters by comrunities
attenpting to draft charters.

Senat or Leman shared that 38 years ago, when he was in the eighth
grade, he studied the Al aska Constitution and antici pated that al
Al aska communities woul d be organi zed by this tine. He shared sone
of Senator WIlken's concerns on this matter. Senator Leman
expressed his intent that Alaska residents in unorganized
comunities should "be participating". He asked whether this
| egi sl ation provides a "better nechanism for this to occur, and he
surm sed it woul d.

Senator Leman addressed the concern regarding granting of
construction permts and noted state and federal |aws define
illegal activities.

Senator Leman expressed, "Wthin the broader context, | believe
that giving commnities and people the opportunities for sone self-
determ nation...is probably a good thing to do and will advance us
toward the goal that many of us have."

Co-Chair Kelly ordered the bill HELD in Conmittee.

SFC- 02 (16) 03/ 25/ 02



#
ADJ QURNVENT

Co-Chair Pete Kelly adjourned the neeting at 10:37 AM

SFC- 02 (17) 03/ 25/ 02



